20414th mecting 23 October 1973 i43

of Guyana had rightly said that the last part of the first
paragraph of artcle I was signiticant 'nats specitica
tion of what apartheid actually was. It was not an
Fnglish word and. although every one knew what it
meant, it had no definition in tetms of faw oroindeed, in
the dratt Convention itself. apart from the elaboration
of its meaning contained in atticle T When drafting
and adopting such an mternational convention, 1t must
be remembered thai it would become pant of the body of
mternational law and might kst beyvond the time when
apartheid wias being practised 10 South Afvica

40, However much his delegation opposed upartheid
and telt that such a comvention was needed. it thought
that more time should be spent on drafting the vonven
tion in order to produce one which would be viable and
wotld comnmand the respect of s considerable numbet
of States Members ot the United Nations, Anmmportant
convention could not be effective if it were tatitied by
only a few countries,

410 Mis, KOROMA (Sieira Leone) expressed her
delegation’s full <upport for the dratt Consention,
whieh might be o step towards tiddimg the international
community of the vancer of aparthend . ftom which
had suffered too long.

42, Her delegation endorsed the comments ot the rep-
resentative of Guyata on the statement by the United
States representative. It also wished to be assoctated
with the words of the representative of Senegal. The
U nited Nations had adopted many sesolutions and ey

pressed many goud mtentions but had done little to rid
the world community of the scourge of upartheid . She
therefore vrged every member of the Committee to
thenk about the draft Conventionas a means of finding o
solution to the problem. Apartheid was being consnli-
dated in an alarming way and 1ts proponents had cven
suceeeded in splithing the consensus which had once
existed aganst it

H30 M SCOTLAND (Guyana) pointed out that the
fact that aupartheid was not an Eaglish term was no
barriet to its incluston in g convention. The general
principles reterred to in Article 38 of the Statute of the
International Court of Justice would include many
terms which had no specaific definition in English, The
tepresentative of Cyprus hed agreed that the meaning
of the terny was specifiedan article H, and he himselt
considered that an adequate detfintion.

44 Mio L BECHIR (Maurttania), speaking on
point of order, ashed the Charman if it would be possi-
ble to adjowr n the meeting i order toenable the African
Giroup to take over the facilities, since they would have
no opportuniy to meet in the afternoon.

45 The CHAIRMAN suid that in the absence of any
objection, he would take it that the Commttee wished
to accede to that request

It wav o decided

The meetins vose at 12,20 pon.

2004th meeting

Fuesday, 23 October 1973, at 10,45 am,

Charrmea: N

AGENDA ITEM 83

Flimination of all forms of racial discrimination (con-
tinted) (A 9003 and Corr. 1, chaps, YNIHL seet, AL
and A2 and XX\, sect. B: A9018, A 9094 aud Corr. !
and Add. 1 and 2, A 2005 and Add. 1, A 9130, A 9177,
A 3120160

{t) Draft Convention on the Suppression and Punish-
ment of the Crime of Apartheid (ontinued) (A 9003
and Corr.t, chap. XYL seets A2, A9095 and
Add. 1, ACRL20160

1. M IRARRAZAVATL «Chiler recalled that at the
preceding meeting sonie delegations had espressed 1e-
servations with regard to the possibibity of improsing
the sittation resulting from the practice of apartheid
through the wdoption of the revised dralt Cosvention.
His ow ndelesation considered that the adoption ot the
draft Convention « VU095 ey ad A 9095 AL 1y,
which alteady had the support ot the Spectal Commit
tee on Aparthend  the Commission on Human Rights
and the Feonomic and Social Council. woubi constitre
amajor step forward o the sealei of internationad o
il Law

20 His delegotion suppoited the procedute of vousad
ering the ol Convennon oty B boanchs s cdem

Yahva MAHMASSANID (] ebanons

AC SR 2004

onstration of s desniie to atrive at o defimton of the
orime of aparthord and to estabhish international legiske
ton tar 1w prnishment,

{rticle U]

L M PETHERBRIDGE tAustralia) said that the
wards Cestabhishing and mamtaimmng™ in the introduc-
tory paragraph should be replaced by “restablishing or
maintaining . since one or the other of those acts would
be sotficient tn the contest of the article.

4 Muore generally, his delegation telt that the defini-
tion of the crime of wpartheid provided in the article
should be clatitied at vatious points. 1t could not e
denied that the definition given was a very broad one.
Many States might be concerned about possible ippli-
vations ot the Convention which had not beenintended
by the sponsors, While, fot example. the daft Conven
fon contained references to receenizable clements of
policies of apar thedd, such s de o aaties segregation,
sepatation and so forth, it also conttained broad refer-
ences to human rights i general, which could be inter-
preted toapphy o many sittatioas In other words. the
vottcept of gpartheid was being widened to such an
eatent that it would be applicables to areas other than
Sonth Abrice Toe varety of way s i which the define-



144 General Assembly—=Twenty-eighth Sessions=Third Committee

tion might be applied should be a matter of concern for
any country whose population included i racial minor-
ity group.

S, The representative of Ghuna had stated at the pre-
vious meeting that the phrase beginning “"'committed
for the purpose of " inarticle 1 was intended to govern
the interpretation of the Convention. However, he
wished to point out that, since no international eriminal
Jurisdiction currently existed. the draft Copvention
wotld require as many States as ratified it to introduce
legislation to put its provisions into effect. In other
words, a very large number of courts in vanous States
would be respunsible for interpreting the definition, and
there would be great variety in the penalties laid down
for the crime of apartheid. There was also the possibil-
ity of retaliatory action by one State against rigid in-
terpretation of the definition in another State.

6. Mr. CHIRILA (Romania) noted that his delegation
had. at the twenty-ninth session of the Commission on
Human Rights, sponsored @ draft resolution, later
adopted by the Commission as resolution 6 (XXIX)?
expressing support for the draft Convention. The major
political and juridical reasons for Romania's support for
the adoption of an international convention to punish
the crime of upartheid had beenset out by the President
of the State Council of Romantain a message sent to the
International Conference of Experts tor the Support of
Victims of Colonialism and Apartheid in Southern Af-
rica (see A/H61, appendix 1D, His country provided
full political, diplomatic. moral and material support tor
the liberation movement and favoured the implementi-
tion of effective United Nations measures to combat
colontalism, racism and apartheid. The adoption of the
draft Convention wis essential as a part of the strugple
against apartheid at all levels and by all means, includ-
ing the use of international law. He recalled that
paragraph 13 ¢ of the programme for the Decade for
Action to Combat Racism and Racial Discerimination”
reterred to the need tor the adoption of new internation-
alinstruments to elinnnate ractal discrimmation in allits
forms and the crime of upartheid.

7. In the light of the references to upartheid in the
United Nations instruments and resolutions mentioned
in the preamble to the draft Convention. it could be said
that apartheid wias already regarded in international
law as constituting a crime against humanity. The pur-
pose of the draft Convention was to reflect that de-
velopment in international law and embody it m a legal
instrument. In that context, article 11 determined i a
comprehensive and precise way the acts which consti-
tuted the crime of upartheid and laid down the principle
that upartheid was an internationally punishable crime.
The development of international criminal Law ap-
peared essential in order to prevent and punish interna-
tional crimes and contribute to a climate of peace. jus
tice and understanding among the peoples of the world.
8. Mr. VON KYAW (Federal Republic of Germany)
said that his delegation regarded as highly significant
the comprehensive list of baste human rights contained
in article 11 1), His delegation considered those rights
to be universally applicable.
9. Mrs. MAIR (Jamatca) sad that. i order that the
draft Convention should be of maximum effectiveness,
CSee OMiciaf Records ot the Feonomg, and Sencead Coarn ' 1o

Lowarth Session, Suppicment No #0 Chap N\
CGeneral Assembly sesolntion 087 0NNV anrey

it should be worded as precisely as possible. Conse-
quently. she felt that article 11 () should contain a
reference to the right to participate in the government of
one's own country directly or through freely elected
representatives. Although that right was implied in
other parts of the draft Convention. it was advisable to
include a specific reference to it and thus preclude the
possibility of arbitrary interpretation. She wished to
propose the addition of the following wards ut the end
of article H (¢r tand the right to take part in the
goverament of the country expressed in the right to
vote in free elections™.

10, Mr. NENEMAN (Poland) observed that if there
wis o be an enumeration of rights. such as that o
tempted i article THeor, it should be exhaustive: other
wise. there should be only o general reference to them.
Sinee it was impractical to include m the diadt Conven-
ton a list of all the rights which should be guaranteed,
he suggested that that subparagraph shoukd be replaced
by o more genetal phrase. That would also be a better
approach from the legal point of view.

drticle 11

I Mre. PETHERBRIDGE (Australian said that his
delegation had ditficults i seeing the distinetion be-
tween “the acts mentioned inarticle 1177 as referred to
inarticle TH e, and the crime of apartheid” as e
ferred toan article I o, Perhaps a representative of
the Office of T egal Atfars could clarify the situation.

12, Inconnexion with the individuals and institutions
mentioned 1n the article, he wondered whether the ap-
puintment by South Africa of a diplomatic representa-
tive to another State would, under the Convention,
place the receiving State under an obligation to prose-
cute that person,

13, Mr. BAL (Mauritania stressed the importance of
article 11 ¢, whose aim was to contront the interni-
tional community with its responsibifities, He recalled
paragraph 3 of General Assembly  resolution 2646
(XXV), which  had  provided the  basis  for
subparagraph (5 of the article under consideration.

4. Tt was also vital for the Convention to contain a
provision urging the information media to inform the
public, especially within the framework of the Decude
tor Action to Combat Racism and Racial Discrimina-
tion, both individually and in co-operation with the
United Nations, of the evils of apartheid. If the dratt
Convention did not so far contain any provision to that
effect, his delegation would submit an appropriate
amendment.

15, M. SCOTTLAND (Guyamu, referring to the paint
which had been raised by the representative of Au-
stralin. said that, it any State received as a diplomatic
representative o former member of @ Government
which had practised genocide, it would have no hesita-
tion in dealing with the matter under the provisions of
the Convention on the Prevention and Punishment of
the Crime of Genocide tGeneral Assembly reselution
260 A (11, annex). Since. in the present case. the draft
Convention described upartheid as a crime against hu-
manity. the application of the Convention would de-
mand similar action. However, he agreed that the opin-
ion ot a representative of the Gifice of Legal Attans on
the matter would be vers usetul.



2004th mecting =23 October 1973 148

Article TV

16, Mr. WIGGINS (United States of America) ob-
served that, under English common law, as it had
evalved in his country and perhaps in others, the legal
authorities were entitled to entoree criminal law only
within the territory of ther own State. Exceptions to
that principle of territoriadity were known, but only in
connexion with pitacy orar piracy. His country would
have considerable difficulty in accepting the provisions
of article IV, stnce they would conflict with its existing
extradition procedures,

17, Mr. PETHERBRIDGE (Australin said that his
country was able to legiskate extraterritorially . but did
so only in rare cases. The terms of article 1V, taken
togetherwith those of article V. seemed to suggest that,
in the case of a person registered on the blacklist envis-
aged under the dratt Convention who was known o
have committed certain crimes, any State would be
required to try fem in absentia and convict him. How

ever, he would appreciate the observations of a rep-
resentative of the Office of Legal Affairs on the matter.

18, Mr. SCOTLAND (Guyuna) said that, under in-
ternational faw, a kind of “*open season™ had been
established for such categories of criminal as pirates
and war eriminals. The question in the present case was
whether the putpose of article IV was to place perpe-
trators of the crime of apartheid on the same Jevel. His
delegation's understanding of article IV (h) was that
States should adopt meusures to prosecute and punish
perpetrators of the crime of upartheid whether or not
those persons resided in the territory of the State in
which the act was committed or were stateless persons.
There was an analogy between such categories of inter-
national criminals and pirates or war criminals, who
were prosecuted by any State which wished to do so.

19, Mr. BADAWI (Egypt) said that, in order to muke
the provisions of the draft Convention as cleat as possi-
ble. his delegation wished to suggest an alternative
wording forarticle 1V ), so that that paragraph would
read: “To adopt any legislative or other measures
necessary to prevent any encouragenient of the crime
of apartheid and similar segregationist doctrines or
their manifestations and to punish persons responsible
for that crime’".*

200 Mrs, WARZAZL (Moraceo) said that she would
appreciate it it the representative of the Office of Legal
Aftairs could explain to what extent the provisions of
article V conflicted with those of article 1V,

Article VI

21, M. PETHERBRIDGE (Austtalico noted  that
under the terms ol article VI (A/MSIADD. D the
Chairman of the Commission on Human Rights would
appoint a group consisting of three members of the
Commission who were also representatives of States
parties to the Convention to consider reports submitted
by States parties inaccordance with article Viand that
if among the members of the Commission there were no
representatives of States parties to the Convention or
fewer than three such representatives, the Secretary-
General would, after consulting abl States parties to the
Convention, designate a representative of the State
party or representatives of the States parties which

* Lext subsequently citenlated as docameat AU 31 Mat”

were not members of the Commission to take pirt in the
work of the group until such time as representatives of
the States parties to the Convention were elected to the
Commussion. He wondered whether the States parties
had the authority to entrust those functions to the
Chairman of the Commission and the Secretary-
General,

22 Mr. SCHREIBER (Director. Division of Human
Rightsy sand with reference to the question taised by the
representative of Australia that the text gave certain
responsibilities to the Chairman of the Commission on
Human Rights, to the Secretary-General, after consul-
tatton with all States parties and to the States parties
themselves. Regarding the responsibilities devolving
upon the Chairman of the Commission on Human
Rights and the Secretary-General, he suggested that it
might be possible, in accordance with certain prece-
dents, for the General Assembly, in a resolution refat-
ing to the adoption of the Convention, to authorize the
Chairman of the Commission and the Secretary-
General to perform the functions assigned to them
under the article in question,

23, With reference to the gquestion raised by the rep-
resentative of Morocco, he noted that since the text had
not been drafted by the Secretariat, its original spon-
sors might be in a better position to reply. He pointed
out, however, that article IV was concerned with the
adoption of suitable enabling legislation and other
measures, while article V' dealt with the judicial au-
thorities having jurisdiction over persons accused of
having committed the acts enumerated in article I of
the draft Convention.

24, On the subject of article ITT (M), the guestions
taised by the representative of Australia were of
complex character. as already noted by the Working
Group of the Commissien on Human Rights. He found
it difficult to comment on what might have been the
solutions to the problems raised. in particular with re-
gard to the coexistence of the proposed Convention
with other existing international instruments and cus-
tomary rules of international law. The comments made
in the Committee by various representatives would, of
course, have an interpretative value in the light of the
teats proposed for adoption.

280 Mis. WARZAZL (Moroceo) said she was not
wholly satisfied with the answer given to her question,
She therefore inquired again whether under article V a
national of South Africa could be tried ulthough his
country was not a party to the Convention, whether
South Africa could try one of its nationals for the com-
mission of a ¢rime covered by the Convention, and
whether an international criminal court could try a
South African national for committing such a crime.
6. Mr. SCHREIBER (Director, Division of Human
Rights).inreply to the representative of Morocceo, said
that he preferred not to interpret the provisions of the
draft Convention to the Committee. He referred, how.
ever.to statements made by members of the Committee
with regard to the qualification of apartheid as a crime
against humanity under international law . which would
mithe it possible for it to be punished by all States
parties imndependently of the nationality of the person
concerned. States which were not parties would not be
bound by the provisions of the Convention.

270 Mro AL-QADHI trag) thought that the questions
raised by the representative of Moroceo were impor-



14t Gengeal Avambly

tant and that they could be answered in the affiimativ e,
Under the draft Convention certain acts wete to be
regarded as enmes. The purpose of aticle T was to
define those acts. Onee the crime wos defined, there
was o need to consider the content of the Liw ., and that
was covered by article TV, Neat came the problem of
determining the authorities which would be responsible
tor jurisdiction, aind that was the subiect of article 'V
Article 1V theretore established a cniminad urisdiction
which would apply universadiv, and article 'V odetined
the authonties competent to dischiarge that univarsal
crimimad qurisdiction. The questien was theretore
whether or not nattonals of South Attic could be tied
under the Convention although therr country was nota
pity Lot No problem should arse however, because
atticle TV Lud down the principle of eniversabity, and
atticle 'V oprovided tor two possibilities tor trving pet-
SO cormutting such cimmes, either thivugh recourse
to o State patts o1 o an interpatiotead crumimad tibunal
i g situation was ot povel i internstional law

280 Mis ROROMA tsierta T ooner said that all At
vans hunintanans and nicn oFconsaienee would wel
conte any etfective steps Seken i vrder to vombat the
dangerons and mhsmai pracitee of apartherd St was
cunvineed that the motivation behind the Conve: ton
was genume and reflected the desite tosecure aneties
v detentent we the practice of apartherd . Shie had
certamn misgiv s however about the ettectiveness ot
article VO She was particulard concarned about the
sitinttion prescthree i South Abiae which was the
bostion of wowrtrcn 0 Her question. thetetone was the
toldow i whae wonts passsh whom i soath Afnce” In
thid comienios shie wished trexpress hor dissatisfin
ton wath the toply 2iven to the question tased by the
representative of Meaoceo Phe gliestion wasan iy
tant one, and the Conmattee shondd give 1t terther
thought

MUOOAME SMERSNON (0 et Sovie! Socadist Repab
liesy sand that the Chatmain of the Compiission on
Hugnean Rights, e appomting e group referred toom
atticle VI patagraph 1owould be fultithing only an
opganizatiomal function. He telt that the role of the

arngrasen on Honse Rights nmught be defined m o
sepatate patagraph in o resolution accompativing the
Convention. and that the Secretary General should be
the deposttany of the Convention Withreferenee tothe
mechanism of implementation of the Consention, he
wished to propose  the followme  amendment
Atticle VI ofthe Convention ongenoctde read. * Any
Contracting Party mav call upon the competent ongans
of the United Nattons 1o tahe such action under the
Chatter of the United Nattons as they considet appro
priate tor the prevention and suppressioi of adts of
penocide o apv of the other adts enitetated 1n
article TH 7 Inview of the mmportance of the € onver
ter taden cotstderation, and of the sertonsness of th
iy o aparthcid. as detined inartscdes Tand 11 s
defegation proposed that o prosision sndoge s 1
atticle VIIT of the Convention on genoaide shoide
incot potited into the ¢ oicention enden cotstderation
He did not thenk that such a provision wonld gis e nise to
difficulties, and his delegation would submint a toral
amendment® along those lnes at the Committee’s newt
meeting.

Smbscguenth ceonbaod e e e M e oy,

Tuenty-vighth Session

Tinrd Commitiey

L M PAPADEMAS (Cyprusy sund that to avoid
any vonfuston. i should be remembered that the Com-
muttee was cuttently considenng the crime ot apear theid
trom the legal and political points of view, Articles TV
to VI provided tor the punishment of the crime of
apartheid as detined naricle 11 Thete was the prob
lem of the fegal steps to be taken morder to bring to triul
a persan who comnutted that crime in a country of
which he was nota national. Such steps might involve
changes in the legel svstem and constitation of the
country concerned. Article Voraised gquestions of mter-
nutional kw1t was not merely a prablem ot ensurning
that nationals of States parties to the Convention
shotld be tred., but alse of definmg what was meant by
the words “mternational penal tribunal™ as used in
articie Voand of deternuning whether plans should be
made tor setting up a new international crmunal court.
A toarticle VI the implication was that the Security
Cauncil would take certain deastons which Memben
States and the States parties would be called upon to
exectite. Thus, the judicid process envisuged by the
Comvention would operate at various levels, and the
Conventon might confront everyone concerned with a
number of problems tor which no early solution could
be tound. Accordingly . the Committee would be well
advised not to proveed too hastils L and to avoid adding
yetanother conrention to those which had been ratitied
bt never enforced. o mereasing the body of existing
mternational Jaw with an instrument which at might
subseqguently be toumd neves ary to abrogate.

i A GRAFEFRATH tGerman Democratic Repubs
Ior send that the draft Comvention tepresented ait at
tei e o olganize co-operation among States ton the
suppiesston atnd punishisent of the crimie of wprathend.
His delegation did nat teel that s provisions tased
nnuny egal ditficultes or novel problems, Under the
terms ol the Convenaon ali States most punish the
writae of ageebeond, and they would lave the necessary
wsdicnon todo soc As o the guetion of who woukd
punsh sl aocrime when 1owas comnittedd i South
Aftiva, the answer was the State which detained the
perpetiator i acvaldanee with article V. Moreaver.
atticle TV mrade 1t possibide tor g geoup of States to do
ointly what cach of them could dondiv iduadly Just as
the Nurtemberg Tubunal had been established to ty
crintes agatiist htataty o grodp of States might agree
tooset up g speckal - ourt to ey persons committing the
cime of dpartited 1t South Atrca or elsewhere.

200 A SCOTLAND tGuvang) observed that the
words or by such internationad penal tribunal as nay
have mrsdiction with respect to those States parties
wbch shall has caecepted its presdiction™ inatticle A
wore admost wdenticel with the wonding ot article Vot
the € onvention on genocide

W0 M WARZAZTMoroccor onee again asked to
whatentent article 'V was conststent witharticle TV ¢,
and whether animtormnationd tnbuna could tiy o South
Aftcan otticul when his country was pot a party 1o the
Convenaon.

Trocfe \

MoAMe PUENLEES IBAND 2 (Bolivio sad that
artivle X taised vertain problems for s delegation be-
catise of the difficuliv of seconciling 1t with cuirent
mter Ameacan legal standands, and m particulan the
mnter b e o comottions concerming  territorial



2004th mecting =23 October 1973 147

asylum. He would therefore find it difficult to endorse
that article of the Convention as it stood.

Article X1

35, Mr. PETHERBRIDGE (Australia) said that the
wording of article XI implied that “disputes between
States Parties arising out of the interpretation, applica-
tion or implementition of'* the Convention could be
brought betore the International Court of Justice only at
the request of all the States parties concerned. How-
ever, he had thought that in such cases the request of
any of the States parties would be sufficient, and he
therefore wondered whether the representative of the
Office of Legal Affairs would be able to clarify that
point,

36, Mr. SLOAN (Director, General Legal Division),
replying to the question raised by the representative of
Moroceo, said that article IV made it clear that apart-
heid was to be considered as an international crime.
the universality of which would not be affected by
whether or not particular States ratified the Conven-
tion. Under article V, however, only States which be-
came parties to the Convention would be competent to
adopt the legislative and other measures provided forin
article 1V, Thus, a person who committed the crime of
apartheid in a State which was not a party to the Con-
vention would still be in violation of the law, and. if he
same within the jurisdiction of a tribunal of a State
which was a party to the Convention, he could be
subject to trial and conviction for that crime.

37, Inreply to the question raised by the representa.
tive of Australia, he drew attention to the words “at the
request of the States Parties to the dispute™ in
article X1, which, as he understood it, meant that the
agreement of all the parties to a dispute was required
before it could be brought before the International
Court of Justice.

IR Mr. COSTA COUTO (Brazih asked whether,
under the terms of article X, a State that was nota party
to the Convention would be obliged to accede to a
request for extradition of one of'its nationals, bearing in
mind that most countries forbade the extradition of
their nationals.

3. Mrs. WARZAZL (Morocceo) said she had not un-
derstood the reply to her question given by the Director
of the General Legal Division. She asked whether the
provisions of the Convention would be applicable to a
State which had not adhered to it

400 Mr. SHAFQAT (Pakistam asked the Director of
the General Legal Division how the parties to a dispute
were to be determined. in the light of the Director’s
statement that a dispute could be referred to the Inter
national Court of Justice only at the request of all pa
ties to the said dispute.

41, Mr. SLOAN (Director, General Legal Division,
replving to the question raised by the representative of
Brazil, said that the only provision in the Convention
relating to extradition was article X, which did not au
tomatically provide the tight to estiadite a national of
any State which was not a party to the Comvention,
‘Thus, the questiont whether such an indiv idual could be
extradited would depend on the extradiinon treaties in
force between States.

42, Hisanswer to the question tatsed by the represen.
tative of Morocco was that the provisions of the Con-

vention could apply only to States thit became parties
to it. However, as he had pointed out earlier, i national
of a State that was not a party to the Convention could
be punished for acts committed in thot State if he cume
within the jurisdiction of another State tha was a party
to the Convention.

43, The representative of Pakistan had asked how the
parties to a dispute could be determined. Such a deter-
mination was within the competence of the Internation-
al Court of Jusuee itsell. He pointed out that his inter
pretation of article X did not aftect the International
Cowrt’s jurisdiction deriving from other instruments
such as declarations of acceptance of compulsory juris-
diction by States.

44, Mr. SMIRNOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Repuh.
lics) pointed out that, although South Africa was not 4
party to any of the existing internstional conventions
relating to crimes against humanity . it did adhere to the
Geneva Conventions and the peace treaties concluded
after the Second World War, which provided for the
arrest and trial of persons tound guilty of war crimes
dand erimes against peace and humanity. Even it South
Africa had not adhered to those conventions, it would
not be relieved of'its obligations under intermational law
in thuat regard.

45, The Director of the Genetal Legal Division had
rightly said that South Africa could not be made to
adhere to the provisions of the Convention if' it did not
become a party toit, However, the obligation to pre-
vent crimes against iternational aw and to punish such
crimes was binding on South Africa, whether of not it
adhered to the Convention. Sincc apartherd was recog-
nized as a crime agamnst hunanity v international law,
the provisions of the Convention could also be made
binding on South Africa.

46, With regard to the provisions of artivle X, he
puinted out that the Convention on the Prevention and
Punishment of the Crime of Genocide contaimed similat
provisions. Article X created no difficulties for the aiti-
zens of States parties to the Convention As far as
citizens of States not parties to the Convention were
concerned, the exeeption provided for in that article
was justitied in conneston with the erime ot apartheid.

47 With regard to the provistons of article X1, he
supported the view that disputes should be brought
betore the Internationad Court of Justice valy at the
request ol all the parties concerned. The parties con-
cerned would thus have the possibility of settling the
dispute i other was s and would submit it to the Inter
mational Court ondy as a last resort,

48 Mro VERRE T cHaity asked whether, 1 view of
the tact that the svstem ot apartheis was practised by
Governments aid notidividuals. the representative of
a4 Government that practised apartieid could be ar
rested i the tetritory of'a State paity to the Convention
aid brought to tnal tor that enme.

49, M SLOAN (Director. General 1 egal Division)
sitid that the answer to that question appeared to be in
the adtirnative. However, itwould be mote appropitate
it the sponsors of the dratt Convention coudd state what
thetr intentions had been in that regard

S0 M VON KY AW (Federal Repubhic of Gerntany)
satd there was a discrepaney between atticle N of the
draft Convention and et e VDol the Convention on
the Prevention and Pumshment of the Crime of



148 General Assembly--Twenty-¢ighth Session-—Third ('ommittee

Genocide, in which States parties to the latter Conven-
tion pledged themselves to grant extradition in accord-
ance with their laws and treaties in force,

S1. Mr. PETHERBRIDGE (Australia) szid that the
answer given by the Director of the General Legal
Division to the question raised by the Haitian represen-
tative did not take into account the question whether
diplomatic immunity could override the provisions of
the draft Convention under consideration.

32, With regard to article XI, he asked whether it was
common practice under international treaties and con-
ventions for disputes to be brought before the Interna-
tional Court of Justice only at the request of all parties,
Inarticle 17 of the draft international convention on the
protection of journalists engaged in dangerous missions
in areas of armed conflict (A/9073, annex). it was stated
that any of the parties to a dispute could refer it to the
International Court,

Article X1
§3. Mr. SCOTLAND (Guyana) proposed an amend-
ment§ whereby the last four words of article X1I would
be deleted and the article would end with the words
“‘accede to it*',

Article X1V
54. Mr. PAPADEMAS (Cyprus) proposed that the

word “‘tenth** should be replaced by the word **thirty-
fifth** in paragraph 1 of article X1V,

55, Mr. COSTA COUTO (BraziD recalled that the
deposit of 27 instruments of ratification had been re-
quired for the entry into force of the International Con-
vention on the Elimination of All Forms of Racial Dis-
crimination. He asked what the rationale had been for
stipulating that number. Any international convention,
if it was to be of practical value, must be universal in
scope. The provision that the Convention would enter
into force after the deposit of the tenth instrument of
ratification or accession seemed to contradict the prin-
ciple of universality,

56. Mr. SMIRNOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub-
lics) said that the number of instruments of accession
required for the entry into force of different interna-
tional conventions varied widely. The figure provided
for in article X1V seemed to be dictated primarily by
the number of States represented in the Third Commit-
tee, and was designed to ensure that the Convention
would enter into foree rapidly. He supported that figure
in view of the importance of the Convention, though he
was sure that many more than 10 States would accede
to it,

¢ Subseguently circulated in document AC. 31 201K

§7. Mr. SCOTLAND (Guyana) endorsed the remarks
made by the Soviet representative.

S8, He proposed an amendment® whereby the words
“oraccession® at the end of paragraph 1 ofurticle XIV
would be deleted and the paragraph would end with the
word ratification”. The question of accession could
not arise until the Convention entered into force.

59, Mr. SLOAN (Director, General Legal Division),
replying to the representative of Australia, said he had
not wished to imply any judgement on the matter of
diplomatic immunity. Hiy interpretation of the draft
Convention had been that it provided for the arrest and
punishment of a national of a State that was not a party
to the Convention who was charged with the erime of
apartheid. 1t was difficult to say whether the obliga-
tions of States under the Convention would override
their obligation to respect diplomatic immunity. It
might be useful if the delegations which had been the
sponsors of the draft Convention prior (o its adoption
by the Economic and Social Council could clarify that
puint.

60, Mr. SCHREIBER (Director, Division of Human
Rights), replying to the question raised carlier by the
representative of Brazil, said that, as faras he had been
able to ascertain, there appeared to hive been several
reasons why the International Convention on the
Elimination of All Forms of Racial Discrimination
stipulated that the Convention would enter into foree
after the deposit of the twenty-seventh instrument of
ratification. Several figures had been proposed. Some
of the elements of the decision were that the Convens
tion envisuged the establishment of 4 committee of 18
members and the Economic and Social Council had had
27 members at that time and that figure had also rep-
resented approximately one third of the then member-
ship of the United Nations.

Organization of work

61. The CHAIRMAN referring to item 63, entitled
“Human rights and scientific and technologicul de-
velopments: report of the Secretary-General™, which
the Committee had decided to consider early in De-
cember, suid he had been informed that the Director-
General of UNESCO would be in New York on or
around 12 November. If there was no objection, he
would take it that members agreed to have the
Director-General of UNESCO address the Committee
and answer questions at that time.

It was so decided.

The meeting rose at 110 pamn,



